1. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

THOMAS M. KLINDWORTH requests the relief designated in 

Part 2 of this Petition. 

2. STATEMENT OF RELIEF SOUGHT 

Mr. Klindworth seeks review of an unpublished Opinion of Divi

sion III of the Court of Appeals dated April1, 2014. {Appendix "A" 1-30) 

3. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

A. Did the trial court's actions in connection with the CrR 3.6 mo

tion result in a denial of Mr. Klindworth's constitutional right 

to present a defense? 

B. Is Mr. Klindworth entitled to the benefit of LAWS OF 2013, Ch. 

35, Second Sp. Sess., § 36 which amended the implied consent 

law (RCW 46.20.308) as it pertains to blood draws? See also: 

State v. Gauthier, 174 Wn. App. 257 (2013). 

4. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Sgt. Dickenson of the Franklin County Sheriffs Office was on 

routine patrol on January 21, 2007. He saw a car traveling sixty (60) miles 

per hour in a seventy (70) mile per hour zone near Road 68, I-182 east

bound. It was 1 :50 a.m. He followed the car at a distance of approximate

ly three (3) car lengths in his unmarked patrol car. (Munoz RP 907, 11. 9-

11; RP 909, 11. 3-14; 11. 20-24) 

According to Sgt. Dickenson the car suddenly swerved into his 

lane and slammed on its brakes. The car slowed to thirty (30) miles per 
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hour and began to pull to the shoulder of the highway. The Sgt. activated 

the lights on his patrol car. (Munoz RP 910, 11. 11-23) 

Mr. Klindworth was the driver of the car. The Sgt. believed he 

smelled the odor of burnt methamphetamine when he approached the car. 

He described Mr. Klindworth as having red eyes, slurred speech, talkative, 

nervous and fidgety, with fast and deliberate movements. Mr. Klindworth 

did not have a problem getting out of his car. He followed the Sgt.'s in

structions. (Munoz RP 912, ll. 20-25; RP 914, ll. 6-9; RP 916, 11. 9-14; RP 

952, 1. 15 to RP 953, 1. 14) 

The Sgt. did not detect any odor of intoxicants. Both Sgt. Dicken

son and Cpl. Bunten noted a chemical odor on or about Mr. Klindworth's 

person. Mr. Klindworth was arrested for driving while under the influence 

of drugs (DUI). (Munoz RP 917, ll. 18-22; RP 932, ll. 17-19; RP 982, ll. 

4-6; RP 989, ll. 17-19) 

Mr. Klindworth consented to a blood draw after having been read 

his implied consent warnings. He requested an additional test as author

ized by the implied consent warnings. Three (3) vials of blood were 

drawn at Our Lady of Lourdes Hospital. Sgt. Dickenson refused to drive 

Mr. Klindworth to another hospital for a separate blood draw. (Munoz RP 

938, ll. 13-15; RP 942, ll. 14-24; RP 943, ll. 5-6; ll. 18-25; RP 955, 1. 8 to 

RP 956, 1. 5; Exhibit 9) 

Sgt. Dickenson left the third vial of blood at the hospital. He as

serted that it was Mr. Klindworth's responsibility to retrieve it. (Munoz 
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RP 940, 11. 1-7; RP 941, 11. 1-15; RP 944, 1. 1; RP 947, 11. 16-18; RP 948, 

11. 2-10) 

On July 23, 2007 Mr. Klindworth filed multiple dismissal motions. 

(CP 314; CP 316; CP 318; CP 320; CP 322; CP 324; CP 327; CP 327; CP 

329; CP 331; CP 333; CP 335) 

On August 14, 2007 Mr. Klindworth again filed multiple dismissal 

motions. (CP 280; CP 282; CP 284; CP 286; CP 288; CP 290; CP 291; 

CP 295; CP 296; CP 306; CP 308; CP 310) 

On September 26 Mr. Klindworth was advised that his motions 

would be reset by the Court Administrator. They were subsequently re

scheduled to October 2, 2007. Notice of the hearing was mailed to Mr. 

Klindworth on September 28, 2007. Patricia Austin, the Superior Court 

Administrator for Benton/Franklin County, claims that she told Mr. 

Klindworth of the October 2 date in a telephone call on September 26, 

2007. Mr. Klindworth did not appear on October 2, 2007. (Supp. CP 419; 

Supp. CP 420; Munoz RP 14, 11. 17-21; RP 20, 11. 21-23; RP 78, 11. 8-12; 

RP 80, 11. 3-17) 

On November 30, 2007 Mr. Klindworth requested appointment of 

an attorney. The trial court denied the request. Mr. Klindworth withdrew 

his remaining motions until he was appointed an attorney. (Munoz RP 

100, 11. 4-17; RP 124, 1. 2 to RP 124, 1. 25; RP 125, 11. 16-20; RP 127, 11. 

16-23; RP 131,11. 2-83; RP 132,11. 10-13; RP 133,11. 1-2) 
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A written request for an attorney was filed on February 6, 2008. 

Mr. Klindworth appeared and again requested representation. Attorney 

Robert Thompson was appointed to represent Mr. Klindworth. (CP 252; 

Adams RP 56, ll. 2-20; RP 67, ll. 4-1 0; RP 82, ll. 13-14; RP 82, 1. 22 to 

RP 83, 1. 10; RP 86, 11. 13-17; RP 88, 11. 9-13; RP 89, ll. 13-15) 

A CrR 3.6 hearing began on July 29, 2008. It concluded on Au

gust 20, 2008 following a stipulated continuance. The trial court sup

pressed all evidence seized from Mr. Klindworth's car on January 21, 

2007. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were entered on October 

29, 2008. (CP 224; King RP 73, 1. 23 to RP 130, 1. 2; RP 133, 1. 20 to RP 

203, 1. 17; RP 232, 1. 9 to RP 233, 1. 8; RP 234, ll. 13-19) 

A CrR 3.3 motion and a CrR 8.3(b) motion were filed on Decem

ber 1, 2009. The motions were argued on December 23, 2009. The testi

mony reflected that notice of the October 2, 2007 hearing was mailed to 

Mr. Klindworth on September 27, 2007. Court Administrator Austin con

firmed her telephone call with Mr. Klindworth. However, there was noth

ing noted in the Clerk's minutes for September 26 concerning an October 

2 pre-trial. The trial court denied the CrR 3.3 motion. (CP 185; Munoz 

RP 396, 1. 21 to RP 407, 1. 15; RP 455, 1. 11 to RP 459, 1. 21; RP 480, 1. 15 

to RP 481, 1. 22) 

The trial court denied Mr. Klindworth's CrR 8.3(b) motion on the 

basis that he had failed to re-note his various motions and that he seemed 
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delusional. He would appear in Court without any documents to support 

his claims. (Munoz RP 481, 1. 23 to RP 483, 1. 18) 

Mr. Klindworth made a further challenge to the driving while un

der the influence statute on the basis that it was void for vagueness. He 

contended it did not include standards for driving while under the influ

ence of drugs. The motion was denied. (Munoz RP 468, 1. to RP 469, 1. 

17; RP 483, 1. 19 to RP 484, 1. 4) 

Mr. Klindworth filed a letter with the Court that same date relating 

to his various motions and the denial of an additional blood test. (CP 142) 

Mr. Klindworth requested removal of his attorney at a hearing on 

March 2, 2010. He refused to talk with her and mentioned a letter that he 

had sent to the Court asking for a new attorney. The trial court denied his 

request. A discussion was had concerning the blood draw, the lack of an 

independent test, and chain of custody. (Munoz RP 512, 1. 16 to RP 514, 

1. 9; RP 516, 1. 22 to RP 517, 1. 17; RP 523, 11. 16-24; RP 525, 11. 8-16; RP 

530, 11. 7-11) 

A CrR 3.6 hearing commenced on August 17, 2010. Mr. 

Klindworth sought to suppress evidence of the blood test results. Portions 

of the record are missing due to a mechanical failure. The hearing could 

not be concluded on August 17 due to further mechanical failure of the 

recording equipment. (Munoz RP 618, 11. 4-5; 618, 1. 11 to RP 619, 1. 4; 

RP 645, 11. 12-20) 
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During the course of the CrR 3.6 hearing the trial court would not 

allow Mr. Klindworth to inquire into the qualifications of the person who 

drew the blood or chain of custody. (Munoz RP 627, 1. 25 to RP 630, 1. 

12; RP 631, 11. 21-25) 

The CrR 3.6 hearing was continued to September 9, 2010. Mr. 

Klindworth remained in custody at this time. He eventually posted bail. 

He did not appear on September 9, 2010 and a bench warrant was issued. 

(CP 123;Munoz RP 649, 11. 18-19; RP 650, 11. 12-18; RP 660, 11. 5-7; 11. 

17-24; RP 662, 1. 24 to RP 663, 1. 1 0) 

On July 8, 2011 the trial court, on its own initiative, called Sgt. 

Dickenson to the stand to allow Mr. Klindworth to continue his cross

examination from the adjourned August 17, 2010 CrR 3.6 hearing. Mr. 

Klindworth advised the Court he could not proceed in the absence of his 

records. The trial court excused the witness and asked for argument. Mr. 

Klindworth declined to argue. The trial court denied the CrR 3.6 motion. 

The State made an inquiry about Mr. Klindworth's desire for representa

tion. Mr. Klindworth demanded an attorney. The trial court said he had to 

proceed pro se. A discussion was then held concerning a time-for-trial 

waiver versus the right to representation. (Munoz RP 722, 1. 22 to RP 742, 

1. 2) 

Mr. Klindworth continued to request an attorney. The prosecuting 

attorney described problems at the Washington State Patrol Crime Lab 

(WSPCL) concerning the blood tests. Apparently all of the records were 
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in archives. (Munoz RP 746, 11. 20-21; RP 747, 1. 3 to RP 748, 1. 2; RP 

749, 11. 12-14) 

On July 11, 2011 Mr. Klindworth made an oral motion to dismiss 

on the basis of: 

1. The State's late addition of witnesses for trial; 

2. Hobson's choice; 

3. Time-for-trial violation; 

4. "Fake FTAs;" 

5. Lack of due process as to hearing notices; 

6. Chain-of-custody on the blood; 

7. Failure to appoint an attorney; 

8. Inability to access his records for trial. 

(Munoz RP 770, 1. 8 to RP 784, 1. 6) 

The prosecuting attorney addressed the chain-of-custody issue. 

Mr. Klindworth continued to argue it. He also raised the issue of the fail

ure of the jail to bring him to Court on June 3. (Munoz RP 789, 11. 13-20; 

RP 792, 113 to RP 793, 1. 14; RP 797, 1. 14 to RP 798, 1. 15) 

The trial court reappointed attorney Kane to represent Mr. 

Klindworth. The reappointment was over Mr. Klindworth's objection and 

attorney Kane's objection. Mr. Klindworth stated he would not work with 

her. His motions were denied. (Munoz RP 799, 1. 23 to RP 809, 1. 25) 

The trial court continued the motion to suppress the blood test evi

dence due to late discovery. (Munoz RP 810, 1. 10 to RP 811, 1. 1) 
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Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law from the CrR 3.6 hearing 

were filed on July 12, 2011. (CP 94) 

A Second Amended Information was filed on July 20, 2011 which 

included only a charge of driving while under the influence of drugs. (CP 

77) 

David Rohr, a clinical lab analyst for Tri-Cities Laboratories testi

fied that he drew Mr. Klindworth's blood on January 21, 2007. He 

prepped Mr. Klindworth's arm with betadine. He checked the tubes for 

additives and the expiration date. The officer provided him the two (2) 

tubes within which to draw the blood. (Munoz RP 896, ll. 16-18; RP 900, 

ll. 13-15; RP 901, ll. 11-23; RP 902, 11. 9-23) 

Mr. Rohr could not remember drawing a third vial. The policy at 

Our Lady of Lourdes Hospital is to retain a vial for only one (1) week. 

(Munoz RP 904, 11. 13-16) 

Sgt. Dickenson indicated that the third vial of blood drawn at Our 

Lady of Lourdes was at Mr. Klindworth's request. He did not get to 

choose where the blood would be drawn. (Munoz RP 621,11. 2-24) 

Problems occurred at the WSPCL. The original analyst, Paige 

Long, was no longer employed. Additional testing was performed by Bri

an Capron. He had problems with his testing procedures. He then passed 

the samples to Asa Louis to complete the testing. (Munoz RP 1015, ll. 21-

22; RP 1018, ll. 13-17; RP 1024, 11. 12-20; RP 1024, l. 24 to RP 1025, l. 3; 

RP 1029, l. 14 to RP 1031, l. 16; Pelletier RP 76, 11. 13-14) 
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Asa Louis is a forensic scientist with the WSPCL. He conducted 

tests on Mr. Klindworth's blood samples of October 2, 2007. This was the 

day prior to Mr. Klindworth's scheduled jury trial on October 3, 2007. 

Sample A contained .28 mg. of methamphetamine and .06 mg. of amphet-

amine. Sample B contained .27 mg. of methamphetamine and .06 mg. of 

amphetamine. (Munoz RP 998, 11. 2-5; RP 999, 11. 7-8; RP 1034, 11. 21-23; 

Pelletier RP 105, 11. 13-18) 

Defense counsel objected to admission of the test results based up-

on non-compliance with WAC 448-14-010, -020 and -030. Additionally, 

an objection was made to chain of custody, denial of Mr. Klindworth's 

right of confrontation and an insufficient foundation being laid. (Munoz 

RP 1061, 11. 11-20; RP 1063, 11. 12-15; Pelletier RP 48, 1. 7 to RP 65, 1. 2) 

A jury determined that Mr. Klindworth was guilty of driving while 

under the influence of drugs. ( CP 21) 

Judgment and Sentence was entered on September 14, 2011. Mr. 

Klindworth filed his Notice of Appeal that same date. (CP 8; CP 10) 

On April 1, 2014 the Court of Appeals entered an unpublished de-

cision affirming Mr. Klindworth's conviction. 

5. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED 

RAP 13 .4(b) contains the provisions relating to discretionary re-

view by the Supreme Court. The rule states: 

A petition for review will be accepted by the 
Supreme Court only: 
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( 1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is 
in conflict with a decision of the Su
preme Court; or 

(2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is 
in conflict with another decision of the 
Court of Appeals; or 

(3) If a significant question of law under the 
Constitution of the State of Washington 
or of the United States is involved; or 

Mr. Klindworth contends that RAP 13.4(b)(l), (2) and (3) are all 

applicable to the Court of Appeals decision in his case. 

The Court of Appeals did not address whether or not Mr. 

Klindworth is entitled to the benefit of State v. Gauthier, supra, or the leg-

islative amendment to RCW 46.20.308. Mr. Klindworth asserts that he is 

entitled to that benefit since his case is still on appeal. 

A. Right to Present Defense 

Mr. Klindworth was denied his right to present a defense as guar-

anteed by the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Con-

stitution as well as Const. art. I, §§ 21 and 22. 

The denial of a right to present a defense is reviewed de novo. 

See: State v. Jones, 168 Wn.2d 13, 719, 230 P.3d 576 (2010). 

'The right of an accused in a criminal trial to 
due process is, in essence, the right to a fair 
opportunity to defend against the State's ac
cusations.' Chambers v. Mississippi, 41 0 
U.S. 284, 294, 93 S. Ct. 1038, 35 L. Ed.2d 
297 (1973). A defendant's right to an op
portunity to be heard in his defense, includ
ing the rights to examine witnesses against 
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him and to offer testimony, is basic in our 
system of jurisprudence. /d. 'the right to 
confront and cross-examine adverse wit
nesses is [also] guaranteed by both the fed
eral and state constitutions.' State v. 
Darden, 145 Wn.2d 612, 620, 41 P.3d 1189 
(2002) (citing Washington v. Texas, 388 
U.S. 14, 23, 87 S. Ct. 1920, 18 L. Ed.2d 
1019 (1967)). 

State v. Jones, supra, 720. 

Mr. Klindworth maintains that the trial court's actions at the July 8 

and July 11, 2011 pre-trial hearings prevented him from presenting his de-

fense to the jury. A critical aspect of his defense was the attack on the 

blood test results and the denial of his ability to have independent tests 

conducted. By short-circuiting Mr. Klindworth's ability to proceed with 

the CrR 3.6 hearing, the trial court allowed the jury to be exposed to evi-

dence that would have been and/or should have been suppressed. 

'Under the due process clause of the Four
teenth Amendment, it must be demonstrated 
that the State's prosecution ... comported 
with prevailing notions of fimdamental fair
ness such that [the defendant] was afforded 
a meaningful opportunity to present a com
plete defense.' State v. Lord, 117 Wn.2d 
829, 867, 822 P.2d 177 (1991) .... [A] mis
trial should be granted 'only when the de
fendant has been so prejudiced that nothing 
short of a new trial can ensure that the de
fendant will be tried fairly.' State v. John
son, 124 Wn.2d 57, 76, 873 P.2d 514 
(1994). 

State v. Greiff, 141 Wn.2d 910, 920-21, 10 P.3d 390 (2000). 
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Mr. Klindworth was prevented from continuing his cross-

examination of Sgt. Dickenson due to his incarceration, lack of records, 

and lack of access to a law library. Mr. Klindworth had no choice but to 

discontinue that cross-examination. 

Mr. Klindworth contends that a full cross-examination of Sgt. 

Dickenson would have impacted the trial court's decision denying the CrR 

3.6 motion as to the blood tests. 

Mr. Klindworth relies upon the following portions of this brief to 

support the argument contained in this portion. 

B. BLOOD TESTS 

Mr. Klindworth was denied the opportunity to have the third 

blood vial tested due to State action/inaction. The blood vial was left at 

the hospital. The hospital only retained it for a period of one (1) week. 

Mr. Klindworth was never advised of this limitation by the arresting of-

fleer or the State. 

The purpose of granting the defendant a 
right to have additional tests performed is to 
afford him or her an opportunity to obtain 
evidence with which to impeach the State's 
blood test results. [Citations omitted.] The 
State's results can be faulty because its sam
ple was contaminated when drawn, contam
inated in the interim between being drawn 
and being tested, switched inadvertently 
with another sample prior to testing, or test
ed improperly. Re-testing the State's sam
ple will not reveal error arising from any of 
these reasons except the last. Thus, it cannot 
be said that re-testing substitutes for an addi-
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tional test in such a way as to obviate preju
dice to the defendant. 

State v. Dunivin, 65 Wn. App. 501, 505, 828 P.2d 1150 (1992). 

The record reflects that there were problems at the WSPCL. Test 

results by the original analyst were excluded. Test results by the second 

analyst were inadmissible due to problems with the testing procedures. It 

was only after the blood had been re-tested a third time that the trial court 

ruled it admissible. 

The fact that Mr. Klindworth could not have the third vial of blood 

tested is critical. 

It is unknown which vials were actually tested at the WSPCL. 

Were all three (3) tests conducted from the same vial or from both 

vials? 

Were the testing difficulties on the second re-test the result of con-

tamination? 

A defendant has a constitutional due process right to gather evi-

dence in his own defense. See: State v. McNichols, 128 Wn.2d 242, 250-

51, 906 P.2d 329 (1995). 

Mr. Klindworth asserts that the facts and circumstances of his case 

are substantially similar to what occurred in State v. Anderson, 80 Wn. 

App. 384, 909 P.2d 945 (1996). In Anderson an additional blood sample 

was taken and given to the defendant's father. The Anderson Court ruled 

at 389: 
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The trial court concluded the blood test was 
admissible because the trooper "substantial
ly met" the legislative intent underlying the 
special evidence warning by arranging to 
take a blood sample for Anderson and giv
ing it to his father an hour and a half later. 
The court found that the officer gave an ap
propriate explanation to a "close available 
family member." The State requests this 
court to forge a "substantial compliance 
rule" for the special evidence warning. 
We must decline to do so. 

(Emphasis supplied.) 

The fact that a third blood sample was taken and left at the hospital 

is not substantial compliance with the special evidence warning. 

RCW 46.20.308(2) provides, in part: 

. . . The officer shall inform the person of his 
or her right to refuse the . . . blood test, and 
of his or her right to have additional tests 
administered by any qualified person of his 
or her choosing as provided in RCW 
46.61.506. 

(Emphasis supplied.) 

Subsequent to the trial court's ruling on the CrR 3.6 motion, as 

well as the trial, a change in the law occurred as to blood draws under the 

implied consent law. The statute was amended by LAWS OF 2013, Ch. 35, 

Second Sp. Sess., § 36. 

RCW 46.20.308(1) now reads, in part: 

Any person who operates a motor vehicle 
within this state is deemed to have given 
consent, subject to the provisions of RCW 
46.61.506, to a test or tests of his or her 
breath . . . if arrested for any offense where, 
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at the time of the arrest, the arresting officer 
has reasonable grounds to believe the person 
had been driving or was in actual physical 
control of a motor vehicle while under the 
influence of intoxicating liquor or any drug 
. . . . Neither consent nor this section pre
cludes a police officer from obtaining a war
rant for a person's breath or blood. 

Sgt. Dickenson elected to have Mr. Klindworth's blood drawn. 

The reason was the sergeant's belief that Mr. Klindworth was under the 

influence of a drug. 

The Legislature recognized that a search warrant is required when-

ever a blood draw is requested by law enforcement as a result of the deci-

sion in State v. Gauthier, supra at 263, where the Court held: 

A blood test or cheek swab to procure DNA 
evidence constitutes a search and seizure 
under the Fourth Amendment and article I, 
section 7 of the Washington Constitution. 
State v. Garcia-Salgado, 170 Wn.2d 176, 
184, 240 P.3d 153 (2010); State v. Curran, 
116 Wn.2d 174, 184, 804 P.2d 558 (1991), 
overruled on other grounds by State v. Ber
lin, 133 Wn.2d 541, 947 P.2d 700 (1997). 
Because taking a DNA sample constitutes a 
search, a warrant or court order is first re
quired. Garcia-Salgado, 170 Wn.2d at 184, 
186. As a result, individuals have a consti
tutional right to refuse consent to warrant
less sampling of their DNA. See 
Schneckloth v. Bustamante, 412 U.S. 218, 
228, 93 S. Ct. 2041, 36 L. Ed.2d 854 (1973); 
State v. Morse, 156 Wn.2d 1, 13, 123 P.3d 
832 (2005). 

Sgt. Dickenson did not apply for a search warrant. He proceeded 

under the law as it existed. 
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However, Mr. Klindworth maintains that he receives the benefit of 

the change in the law. 

In State v. Mann, 146 Wn. App. 349, 359, 189 P.3d 843 (2008) it 

was recognized that 

. . . [T]he fact that the legislature adopted an 
amendment in response to a . . . Supreme 
Court ruling does not automatically render 
the amendment clarifying or curative. [Cita· 
tions omitted.] .. . [L]egislative enactments 
which respond to judicial interpretations of a 
prior statute, and which materially and af
firmatively change that statute, are not simp
ly "clarifications" of the original intent of 
the legislature; rather, such enactments are 
"amendments" to the statute itself. [Citation 
omitted.] 

"Nor is the legislature prohibited from 
'pass[ing] a law that directly impacts a case 
pending in Washington courts."' Wash. 
State Farm Bureau Fed'n v. Gregoire, 162 
Wn.2d 284, 304, 174 P.3d 1142 (2007) (al· 
teration in original) (quoting Port of Seattle 
v. Pollution Control Hearings Bd., 151 
Wn.2d 568, 625, 90 P.3d 659 (2004)). 

The Mann Court went on to hold at 360: 

... [B]arring a constitutional limitation, we 
will apply a statutory amendment retroac
tively "when it is (1) intended by the Legis
lature to apply retroactively, (2) curative in 
that it clarifies or technically corrects am
biguous statutory language, or (3) remedial 
in nature." Barstad v. Stewart Title Guar. 
Co., 145 Wn.2d 528, 536-37, 39 P.3d 984 
(2002). Washington courts disfavor retroac
tive application of a statute, absent legisla
tive direction to the contrary. 

Mr. Klindworth contends that the amendment to RCW 46.20.308 is 
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remedial in nature. The statutory amendment, in effect, clarifies and reaf-

firms the constitutional prohibition against warrantless searches and sei-

zures insofar as blood tests are concerned. 

Moreover, since the implied consent statute is criminal in nature, it 

is subject to both Fourth Amendment and Const. art. I, § 7 analysis. See:

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