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

V. ARGUMENT 

A. THERE IS NO CONSIDERATION UNDER RAP 13.4(b) 
WHICH WOULD PERMIT REVIEW. 

A petition for review will"only" be accepted if at least one of the 

provisions of RAP 13.4(b) is met. The Defendant summarily asserts 

without argument that every provision of RAP 13.4(b) is satisfied. The 

State disagrees that any consideration under RAP 13.4(b) is met. 

There is no conflict of laws, no significant constitutional question, and 

no question of substantial public interest. 

The Defendant asserts that he was denied the right to present 

a defense because he was not ready for the CrR 3.6 hearing despite 

demanding that the right to proceed pro se, despite demanding the 

hearing be held immediately, and despite a delay of over four years. 
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No authority supports this assertion. The Defendant relies on State v. 

Jones, 168 Wn.2d 713, 230 P.3d 576 (2010). However, the case is 

inapplicable, because, unlike Jones, the Defendant was not prevented 

from testifying, examining witnesses, or presenting evidence. 

Unpublished Opinion at 16-17. 

The Defendant asserts the court of appeals did not consider 

the applicability of State v. Gauthier, raised for the first time in oral 

argument. Not only does Gauthier have no applicability, but no 

authority supports the Defendant's claim that the court is required to 

consider this challenge which did appear in any briefing. 

B. THE COURT DID NOT VIOLATE THE DEFENDANT'S RIGHT 
TO PRESENT A DEFENSE BY FOLLOWING THROUGH 
WITH A PRETRIAL SCHEDULE FOR HEARING MOTIONS. 

The Defendant complains that the trial court denied him the 

right to challenge the blood evidence by forcing him to proceed with 

the CrR 3.6 hearing. Petition at 11. However, it is clear from the 

record that the decision to proceed on that day was not the court's, 

but the Defendant's. 

The Defendant had asked to represent himself on March 23, 

2010, specifically expecting to argue this motion, and he had been 

warned that no continuances would be allowed. Lang RP 107-09. 
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The Defendant had delayed the completion of the hearing by 

absconding for many months. It was then the eve of trial. He was 

finally present on the date of the scheduled hearing. He was insisting 

on having the hearing without the assistance of standby counsel. But 

then at the moment of the hearing, when all parties and the witness 

were gathered, he demanded a delay (even while insisting that a 

delay violated his speedy trial right.) 

The court completed the hearing, which the Defendant had 

himself insisted on holding that very day. That the Defendant refused 

to either make a cogent CrR 3.6 argument or to permit a short 

continuance of the hearing to allow his standby counsel to be present 

does not give rise to judicial error. 

The Defendant relies on State v. Jones, 168 Wn.2d 713, 230 

P.3d 576 (2010). There the issue was whether the court had 

prevented the Defendant from making a defense by refusing to admit 

evidence of the circumstances surrounding the rape. That is unlike 

the case here. Mr. Klindworth was not prevented from admitting 

evidence at trial. In fact, the State presented to the jury the very 

evidence relevant to the Defendant's complaint, explaining exactly 

how an extra blood sample had been taken at the Defendant's 
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request, but never picked up by the defense. Munoz RP 896-905, 

942-44. The Defendant had multiple opportunities to question the 

sergeant. Unpublished Opinion at 17. 

The Defendant's motion was to suppress the State's evidence 

(or dismiss the State's case) under the theory that the State was 

under some obligation to look after the Defendant's extra vial. The 

Defendant was permitted to make the motion. It was argued in his 

2009 brief. He, however, refused to make the oral argument in 2011. 

The court did not prevent the Defendant from making his motion or 

arguing his claim before the jury. 

The trial court properly ruled that the cause of the loss of the 

evidence was the Defendant's neglect, not the State's. Munoz RP 

7 41-42. The court of appeals held that the State "was under no 

obligation to cover the expenses or otherwise assist in the 

procurement of the additional blood tests for Mr. Klindworth." 

Unpublished Opinion at 14, citing Gonzales v. Dep't of Licensing, 112 

Wn.2d 890, 899, 774 P.2d 1187 (1989). Arresting officers are under 

no obligation to assist a defendant in making an independent test, but 

are only obliged not to hinder or obstruct the defendant's efforts. 

State v. McNichols, 128 Wn.2d 424, 906 P.2d 329 (1995). 
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C. THE COURT OF APPEALS DID NOT ERR IN FAILING TO 
CONSIDER A CHALLENGE THAT WAS NOT MADE IN THE 
APPELLANTS BRIEF. 

On appeal, the Defendant challenged the admission of the 

blood evidence, arguing that he "was not allowed to have an 

additional test by a person of his own choosing." Appellant's Brief at 

1, 38. The appeal did NOT challenge the admission of the blood 

evidence as being inadmissible absent a search warrant. Appellant's 

Brief at 1, 36-40. There was no briefing on either State v. Gauthier, 

174 Wn. App. 257, 298 P.3d 126 (2013) or a 2013 revision to RCW 

46.20.308(1). 

In the Petition for Discretionary Review (at 15-16), the 

Defendant argues that under State v. Gauthier, 174 Wn. App. 257, 

298 P.3d 126 (2013) and newly revised RCW 46.20.308(1) the 

evidence should have been suppressed because there was no 

warrant. 

There is no consideration under RAP 13.4(b) which would 

permit ·the Washington Supreme Court under a petition for 

discretionary review to consider a challenge which was not raised to 

the court of appeals, but is made for the first time in the petition. 
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The Defendant complains that the court of appeals "did not 

address whether or not Mr. Klindworth is entitled to the benefit of 

State v. Gauthier, supra, or the legislative amendment to RCW 

46.20.308." Petition for Discretionary Review at 10. The court of 

appeals did not address the challenge, because it was not in the 

Appellant's Brief. A petition for review is intended to review a 

decision. There was no decision and could be no decision of a matter 

not properly raised to the court of appeals. 

As a matter of legal fairness, an appealing party must give the 

responding party fair notice of issues to be reviewed. Under RAP 

10.3(a)(4), the appellant should make a concise statement of the 

assignment of errors. Failure to do so should result in the court's 

declining to consider the claim. Ang v. Martin, 154 Wn.2d 477, 487, 

114 P.3d 637 (2005); Cowiche Canyon Conservancy v. Bosley, 118 

Wn.2d 801, 809, 828 P.2d 549 (1992); DeHeer v. Seattle Post

lntelligencer, 60 Wn.2d 122, 126, 372 P.2d 193 (1962) (refusing to 

consider a challenge unsupported by any argument in the brief). 

Here not only was there no assignment of error on this point, 

but there was no briefing on this point, and no notice to the State of 

the challenge. The court of appeals' refusal to consider something 
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that was not properly raised for review is not in conflict with any court 

decision or constitutional provision. It is consistent with precedent 

and court rule. The court's decision does not present an issue of 

substantial public interest. 

The Defendant argues that under State v. Gauthier, 174 Wn. 

App. 257, 298 P.3d 126 (2013) and a 2013 revision to RCW 

46.20.308(1 ), "a search warrant is required whenever a blood draw is 

requested by law enforcement as a result of the decision in State v. 

Gauthier. . . . Sgt. Dickenson did not apply for a search warrant." 

Petition at 15. Neither authority indicates that consent is not an 

exception to the warrant clause. 

The Defendant consented to the blood draw. Voluntary 

consent is an exception to the warrant requirement. State v. 

Khounvichai, 149 Wn.2d 557, 562, 69 P.3d 862 (2003). Neither at 

trial not on appeal did the Defendant challenge the voluntariness of 

his consent. Therefore he cannot raise the issue for the first time on 

appeal - much less for the first time in a petition for discretionary 

review. RAP 2.5(a); State v. McFarland, 127 Wn.2d 322, 333, 899 

P.22 1251 (1995); State v. Lee, 162 Wn. App. 852,857,259 P.3d 294 

(2011), review denied, 173 Wn.2d 1017, 272 P.3d 247 (2012). 
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In Gauthier, the defendant was accused of rape. Initially, he 

agreed to provide a DNA sample. Gauthier, 174 Wn. App. at261. He 

later withdrew his consent, and police obtained the sample through a 

warrant. ld. At trial, the prosecutor cross-examined Gauthier about 

his refusal to provide the sample. Gauthier, 174 Wn. App. at 262. 

The court of appeals held that it is impermissible to use the invocation 

of one's right to refuse a warrantless search as substantive evidence 

of guilt. Gauthier, 174 Wn. App. at 267. The case has no relevance 

here. Mr. Klindworth did not refuse. He consented. There was no 

refusal to use against him as evidence of guilt. 

The Defendant points to an amendment by Laws of 2013, ch. 

35, Second Sp. Sess., sec. 36 (effective September 28, 2013) to 

RCW 46.20.308(1 ). 

(1) Any person who operates a motor vehicle 
within this state is deemed to have given consent, 
subject to the provisions of RCW 46.61.506, to a test or 
tests of his or her breath or blood for the purpose of 
determining the alcohol concentration, THC 
concentration, or presence of any drug in his or her 
breath or blood if arrested for any offense where, at the 
time of the arrest, the arresting officer has reasonable 
grounds to believe the person had been driving or was 
in actual physical control of a motor vehicle while under 
the influence of intoxicating liquor or any drug or was in 
violation of RCW 46.61.503. Neither consent nor this 
section precludes a police officer from obtaining a 
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search warrant for a person's breath or blood. 

This argument is usually framed in the context of Missouri v. 

McNeely,-- U.S.--, 133 S.Ct. 1552, 185 L.Ed.2d 696 (2013). There 

in a DUI arrest, the officer took the defendant's blood without a 

warrant and after his explicit refusal to consent. McNeely, 133 S.Ct. 

at 1554. The case only regards evidence obtained in the absence of 

warrant, exigency, and consent. Consent- voluntary or implied

remains a viable and justifiable exception to the general requirement 

that any search and seizure be done pursuant to a warrant. Missouri 

v. McNeely, 133 S.Ct. at 1565. The case has no relevance here, 

because the Defendant consented. 

Because driving is a privilege in Washington, see Dep't of 

Licensing v. Cannon, 147 Wn.2d 41, 47, 50 P.3d 627 (2002), the 

choice whether to submit to or refuse a blood alcohol test is "'a matter 

of legislative grace."' State v. Koch, 126 Wn. App. 589,595, 103 P.3d 

1280 (2005) (quoting State v. Bostrom, 127 Wn.2d 582,902 P.2d 157 

(1995)). All drivers in Washington at the time of Defendant's arrest 

gave consent to a blood alcohol test the moment they slipped behind 

the wheel, leaving them only the option to revoke that consent should 

the test be requested. State v. Avery, 103 Wn. App. 527, 533, 13 
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P.3d 226 (2000). Here the test was requested, the Defendant 

reviewed his rights at length, and then signed a consent to the blood 

draw. 

Any suggestion that the implied consent statute is intended to 

give dangerous drivers greater protections than the constitution is ill

informed. Like so many of its sister states, Washington adopted an 

implied consent statute to help address the serious issue of drug

and/or-alcohol-related driving offenses. State v. Wetherell, 82 Wn.2d 

865, 869, 514 P.2d 1069 (1973); State v. Avery, 103 Wn. App. 527, 

532, 13 P.3d 226 (2000); State v. Smith, 84 Wn. App. 813, 819, 929 

P.2d 1191 (1997). Such laws were "designed to facilitate, not 

impede, the gathering of chemical evidence to prosecute drunk 

drivers. [They were] not designed to give greater Fourth Amendment 

rights to an alleged drunk driver than those afforded other criminal 

defendants." State v. Smith, 84 Wn. App. at 819, 929 P.2d 1191 

(citing State v. Zi/ke, 403 N.W.2d 427 (Wis. 1987)). 

The amendment to RCW 46.20.308(1) has no relevance here. 

First, it is not relevant, because it was not effective on the date of the 

Defendant's arrest. The Defendant "does not dispute that Sgt. 

Dickenson properly informed him of his implied consent rights." 
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Petition at 17. Second, the Defendant's consent was not implied 

based on the fact of his driving. He gave actual, informed consent. 

VI. CONCLUSION 

Based upon the forgoing, the State respectfully requests this 

Court deny the petition.